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PRESIDENTS’ REPORT

Over more than four decades, ANZICS has played a pivotal 
role in the support and development of intensive care in 
our region. Through the leadership and hard work of many 
visionary intensivists, the Society developed from small 
beginnings to become a respected and globally significant 
advocate across all domains of critical care practice.  
The outstanding success of ANZICS is especially evident 
through the work of CORE, CTG and showcase events such 
as the annual scientific meetings. These achievements are 
rightly a source of considerable pride and provide inspiration 
to all of us and especially early career intensivists. While 
the guiding principles and fundamental values of ANZICS 
remain constant, future success cannot be guaranteed through 
adherence to previous strategies and processes. 

As intensive care practice continues to evolve, so must the 
Society that advocates for it. ANZICS has commenced an 
important journey of reflection, consultation, engagement and 
strategic evolution. This endeavour includes seeking feedback 
from members, engagement with key collaborators, seeking 
expert professional guidance and critical evaluation of current 
activities, structures and processes. A key guiding principle 
is the essential requirement to acknowledge and build upon 
the past success of the Society and to remain true to our core 
responsibilities as advocates for intensive are practice. Our 
advocacy centres primarily on promoting the best possible 
care for critically ill patients through support for the clinicians 
who dedicate their professional lives to this care. Many ANZICS 
members will be aware of the work that is currently underway to 
ensure that the Society makes necessary changes required to 
ensure that we can continue this essential work into the future. 
I would encourage all ANZICS members to participate in and 
contribute to these efforts. 

Specific processes include a review of the Society’s 
strategic plan, a review of our structure and governance 
and consultation with members through surveys. 
Ultimately, we are little more than a collection of individual 
intensive care clinicians who have a shared vision of 
how we may work better for the benefit of our patients. 
It’s remarkable what can be achieved through our 
collective efforts and it is with excited anticipation that I 
look forward to seeing a strong and effective Society 
adapt to contemporary needs and future challenges. A 
key issue for ANZICS is the need to expand membership 
to all practising intensivists; it is crucial that senior doctors 
practicing primarily in intensive care are members of the 
Society and contribute to this important aspect of 
professional life. 

This will require demonstrating that we are an organisation 
that rewards membership and achieves relevant outcomes. 
We must also ensure we provide attractive and meaningful 
membership and representation for non-medical intensive 
care clinicians. Just as intensive care clinical practice is 
a multidisciplinary undertaking, ANZICS has a clear 
responsibility to represent all team members and will 
increasingly seek to engage with all clinicians working in 
the ICU in a manner that maximises collaboration and builds 
upon current structures.

During the course of the last year, one of the most obvious 
changes for ANZICS has been the process of selling ANZICS 
House and the move to new premises. This has been a major 
and carefully considered decision and has required a huge 
amount of work by the ANZICS staff and the leadership 
team. We are pleased with the financial outcome and new 
circumstances for the Society and are now enjoying the 
benefits of the change of scene to Camberwell. The current 
location works well for us, but it is anticipated that it is our 
long-term interests to purchase a property either in our own 
right, or in collaboration with a suitable partner organisation. 
A working group will be established to work through the 
various options that are possible and will provide options 
and recommendations to the Board for consideration over 
the coming years.

Another welcome development for intensive care is the 
excellent work undertaken by individual members and 
groups such as ANZICS-WIN to address lack of diversity 
and insufficient gender balance within intensive care. 

Another welcome development for inten-

sive care is the excellent work undertaken 

by individual members and groups such 

as ANZICS-WIN to address lack of 

diversity and insufficient gender balance 

within intensive care...

“ 

”
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There clearly remains a great deal of work to be done before 
it could be said that necessary change has been completed, 
however the achievements so far are gathering momentum 
and have inspired greater engagement by members old and 
new. It is essential that if we are to achieve our full potential 
as a society that advocates for all intensive care clinicians, 
that individual members must also be supported to achieve 
their own full professional and personal potential.

In addition to maintaining relevance and effective performance, 
a current key challenge for ANZICS is the need to establish new 
and recurring sources of income.  As can be seen in the audited 
financial report, the Society is currently well-placed, however 
the current environment is clearly very challenging, and it is a 
key priority to establish programs that generate reliable income 
for the Society such that essential work can continue. 

A key priority in the next twelve months is to explore potential 
new strategies and relationships that are compatible with 
our values and goals and generate income. The Society is 
recognised as both expert and capable in several 
domains and opportunities to realise an earning potential 
through a key element to the success of ANZICS is the 
performance of its various components. 

Throughout this report, you will read of the efforts and 
achievements of many groups, including the Board, 
meeting organisers, CORE, PricE, CTG, DODC, Safety and 
Quality, Paediatrics, Education, and ANZICS-WIN. In 
addition, there are emerging groups such as those 
dedicated to enhancing our contribution to improving the 
provision of care in resource limited countries. 

Each of these groups exists through the selfless and 
sustained efforts of busy clinicians who volunteer their 
time and energy to further the cause of ANZICS and those 
we advocate for. It should be noted that this is often at 
considerable personal cost to these individuals and their 
families. 

On behalf of ANZICS, I would like to thank all those who 
dedicate themselves to this work for the Society and 
acknowledge that it often comes with little direct reward 
other than the satisfaction that accompanies the impressive 
outcomes that are so often achieved. It is not lost on any of us 
that much of this work occurs after hours and is completely 
discretionary. Moreover, there is a considerable 
opportunity cost, much of which is bourne by families. In 
addition to thanking members who work so hard for the 
Society, it is important to acknowledge the sacrifice of 
families that inevitably accompanies this work. For 
members who may not have previously been actively 
engaged in ANZICS activities, I would urge you to 
consider committing to one or more of our endeavours. 
Through your service you will experience a great deal of 
supportive collegiality and personal satisfaction and will also 
be helping reduce the load on those who have already 
done so much.
Finally, none of the achievements noted in this annual report 
would be possible without the hard work and professionalism 
of the ANZICS office team. Gian Sberna and the ANZICS staff 
provide excellent service to the organisation and routinely go 
far beyond the call of duty in order to achieve our remarkable 
outcomes. Thank you so much for your outstanding efforts.

Stephen Warrillow
President, ANZICS

”

On behalf of ANZICS, I would like to thank 

all those who dedicate themselves to this work 

for the Society and acknowledge that it often 

comes with little direct reward other than the 

satisfaction that accompanies the impressive 

outcomes that are so often achieved. 

“ 

”
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TREASURERS’ REPORT

This is my fourth Treasurer’s report and it continues to be a 
great privilege for me to hold this position on behalf of the 
members and to report to the membership on the current 
financial position and performance of our Society over the 
past financial year. In a challenging environment, ANZICS 
has delivered a sound financial result for its members.  
In summary, ANZICS generated a surplus of $248,994 for 
the 2018 financial year. A review of our operations shows 
subscription income of $506,930, which is up 3% on the 
previous year. Grant funding remained steady at $1,320,671 
(which largely supports the contracted activities undertaken 
as part of CORE Registries). Our main educational event, 
the ASM held on the Gold Coast in October 2017, was very 
popular amongst members and the event returned a surplus 
of $147,027.

Additional income of $90,038 was generated from 
investments and term deposits and an unrealised gain of 
$34,172 from investments held at balance date contributed 
to the result. The sale of ANZICS House generated a gain of 
$107,780 which was recognised in the 2018 results.

Employee expenses of $1,470,536 was our largest expense 
category and represents 58% of total expenses. Constant 
effort is made to ensure employee expenses are contained but 
appropriately remunerate our staff who serve the members 
so well. Growth in this category was 4.7%. Administrative 
expenses were consistent with the previous years.  Significant 
but much needed ICT development work was carried out 
during the year in respect of both CORE registries and for 
the Society itself – which resulted in total ICT expenditure 
of $157,838, an increase of $60,833 over the previous year. 
Depreciation charges increased by $22,640 to $125,904, 
mostly due to accounting standards which require us to 
depreciate our COMET software over a period of 5 years at 
$95,571 per year. Whilst this is a non-cash expense it does 
impact upon our profit result.

With respect of our financial position, ANZICS maintains cash 
and deposits of $4,817,450 and investments of $1,191,316 
– largely driven by the sale of our former property at
Ievers Terrace in Carlton. In contrast, we have reported
commitments and liabilities at balance date of $1,153,334.
Taken together, ANZICS’s bottom line remains strong. Our
Investment Strategy has been continually reviewed with
our Investment Managers and is closely aligned with the
Board’s commitment to members to secure the financial
future of the Society.

Our investment strategies have been designed to achieve 
moderate growth over time with an acceptable level of risk. 
To date, the portfolio continues to perform well and within 
expected parameters.

In order to deliver the best possible services to our members, 
the critical care community, and to further increase the 
standing of ANZICS in the medical and wider community, 
we need to assiduously manage our budget to be able 
to implement initiatives in support our strategic plans.  
I commend to the members of ANZICS this latest financial 
year result as an outstanding result given the myriad of 
challenges that have presented themselves this year. 

The Board of Directors, Executive, Committees and in 
particular the staff have worked very hard to deliver a positive 
and encouraging result. I would also like to acknowledge 
the tremendous service and guidance provided by our 
General Manager, Gian Sberna, who continues to enhance 
the financial position of ANZICS. Thank you to our team and 
membership for a great result. 

Anthony Holley
Honorary Treasurer, ANZICS

In order to deliver the best possible 
services to our members, the critical 
care community, and to further increase 
the standing of ANZICS in the medical 
and wider community... 

“ 

”
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We will also be seeking your input via surveys and other 
forums to gather ideas to progress the society. Our new 
strategic vision accurately reflects who we are today and 
what we aspire to do into the future:

The staff of ANZICS and I are energised with our new 
strategic goals and organisational vision. This vision will serve 
as a common rallying point for all our future endeavours. 
Despite having multiple backgrounds and focusses, we are 
single-minded in connecting the intensive care community 
to deliver the best possible opportunities for our members.
The outstanding and internationally competitive contribution 
of several ANZICS Committees has further reinforced our 
organisation as the peak representational body for the 
Australian and New Zealand intensive care workforce.  
I commend the reports from these committee groups provided 
in this report for your edification.

Ongoing education for members has been, and will continue 
to be, an ongoing focus for ANZICS. The 2017 Annual Scientific 
Meeting (ASM) held on the Gold Coast was a fantastic success 
with over 1,100 delegates in attendance. Substantial credit for 
this success must go to the meeting conveners and all the 
presenters. We look forward to an equally successful ASM in 
Adelaide this year. On our horizon, the rapidly approaching 
World Congress on Intensive and Critical Care Medicine in 
Melbourne in October 2019, will undoubtedly be a highlight 
in the coming year.

Finally, I would like to formally acknowledge the ANZICS 
team for their unwavering efforts to serve the needs of 
our members. The professional and dedicated manner in 
which they have continued to support our members and 
key stakeholders of ANZICS during a period of significant 
change has been outstanding. I look forward to the continued 
evolution of ANZICS to further improve the value proposition 
of membership of our society.

Gian Sberna 
General Manager, ANZICS

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

The past 12 months has seen significant change and evolution 
of ANZICS – which has touched virtually every aspect of our 
operations. The fruits of this labour will hopefully be seen in the 
near term – in particular, the value of ANZICS membership 
will become substantially clearer and more significant.  
The decision to relocate our headquarters in the previous 
year was momentous, but well justified given several external 
factors. Capitalising on the value of our most prized asset 
prior to any further deterioration in the physical status of the 
facility, significant disruption to the surrounds of ANZICS 
house or the well-publicised downturn in the macro real 
estate market, has allowed us to relocate to a new site on 
very favourable terms, whilst providing us with the opportunity 
to buy into the real estate market again in the near future. 
I am pleased to report that we have successfully achieved 
our relocation with minimal downtime, and we are ready to 
move back into the property market when an appropriate 
opportunity presents itself.

The board and staff of ANZICS have also steadfastly 
progressed the development of our multi-year strategic 
plan for the society. We have defined five strategic goals for 
the next three years, which include to: 

• Improve the value proposition of ANZICS membership
• Build a sustainable organisation
• Raise societal awareness of the value of intensive

care practice and of ANZICS
• Commercialise ANZICS’ expertise and capabilities
• Support intensive care outcomes for disadvantaged

and diverse communities

Specific initiatives to support the delivery of each of these 
goals are well underway. We are striving to be the most 
inclusive society in all the ways we progress the delivery 
of our strategic goals, so we welcome and encourage your 
feedback. Please don’t hesitate to contact me to share any 
ideas that you feel will positively contribute. 

Connecting the Intensive Care Community“ ”
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MEMBERSHIP 

As a society that values diversity and multi-discipline input, 
ANZICS membership continues to grow over the last 12 
months, with significant increases in nursing and allied health 
membership.  Engagement with younger members continues 
to improve also, with growing trainee membership and new 
fellows transitioning to Full membership.

Emphasis has also been put on increasing membership 
value, which has led to conversations with a variety of benefit 
providers that shares ANZICS values.  First of which is Reho 
Travel, an ethical travel agency who not only offer competitive 
efficient service, but a peace of mind that your money is 
being responsibly managed at a global level.  We hope to 
continue forming these meaningful relationships to provide 
members with more benefits in the coming year.

ANZICS will also continue to provide opportunities to 
represent our craft group at an international level, as well 
as platforms for members to enhance educational, research, 
quality and professional development.  With the World 
Congress in Melbourne in 2019, and around 90 official 
international delegations, there will be significant global 
focus on many aspects of Australian critical care.  

Clinicians around the world hoping to engage our well-known 
craft group, and with strategic direction to now include global 
collaboration on many fronts, there is no better time to be 
part of ANZICS.  The society wants to serve not just the few 
at high levels, but the significant “middle class”.

We will continue to pursue value for our membership, we 
always welcome your ideas and innovations, and we look 
forward to creating more opportunities for our members.

David Ku
Honorary Secretary

ANZICS will also continue to provide 
opportunities to represent our craft 
group at an international level, as well 
as platforms for members to enhance 
educational, research, quality and  
professional development... 

“ 

”
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CENTRE FOR OUTCOME AND RESOURCES 
EVALUATION (CORE)

CORE provides registries services for the benchmarking of 
Intensive Care outcomes across Australia and New Zealand 
with inclusion of other sites beyond Austrasia. This capability 
is uniquely provided by ANZICS, which offers an overview 
across regional, state, federal and international jurisdictions. 

AIMS OF THE CORE ICU REGISTRIES 

Provision of comparative benchmarking reports to submitting 
ICUs and health departments detailing variation in process 
measures, quality of care indicators and risk-adjusted clinical 
outcomes:

• Identification and analysis of outlier ICUs 
• Provision of Data Quality and Education program to  

support submission of high quality data
• Assist researchers to identify potential areas for  improve-

ment of Intensive Care practices and patient outcomes.

Data submitted to the ANZICS CORE Registries supports 
research on a broad range of areas related to the provision 
of Intensive Care including: mortality, disease patterns and 
the effectiveness of critical care interventions, critical care 
workforce, auditing of quality activities, and planning for 
emerging issues such as pandemics or biosecurity. 

ADDING TO OUR CLINICAL TEAM 

Alastair McGeorge from Auckland Hospital joined the CORE 
Management Committee as Associate Director of the Adult 
Patient Database (APD). Alastair is working with the CORE 
team focussing on aspects of data quality and looking at 
strategies to support quality data submission from the 
submitting units. 

Centre for Outcome and Resources Evaluation (CORE)

CORE provides registries services for the benchmarking of Intensive Care outcomes across Australia and New Zealand
with inclusion of other sites beyond Austrasia. This capability is uniquely provided by ANZICS, which offers an overview
across regional, state, federal and international jurisdictions.

AIMS of the CORE ICU Registries 

• Provision of comparative benchmarking reports to submitting ICUs and health departments detailing variation in 
process measures, quality of care indicators and risk-adjusted clinical outcomes

• Identification and analysis of outlier ICUs
• Provision of Data Quality and Education program to support submission of high quality data
• Assist researchers to identify potential areas for improvement of Intensive Care practices and patient outcomes.

Data submitted to the ANZICS CORE Registries supports research on a broad range of areas related to the provision of
Intensive Care including: mortality, disease patterns and the effectiveness of critical care interventions, critical care
workforce, auditing of quality activities, and planning for emerging issues such as pandemics or biosecurity.

Adding to our Clinical team

Alastair McGeorge from Auckland Hospital joined the CORE Management Committee as Associate Director of the Adult
Patient Database (APD). Alastair is working with the CORE team focussing on aspects of data quality and looking at 
strategies to support quality data submission from the submitting units.

Contributions to the ANZICS CORE ICU Registries over time

Fig 1. Contribution to ANZICS CORE Adult Patient
Database (APD)

 

Fig 2. Contribution to ANZICS CORE Australia and New
Zealand Paediatric Intensive Care (ANZPIC) Registry

 
Fig 3. Contribution to ANZICS CORE Critical Care
Resources (CCR) Registry

Fig 4. Contribution to Central Line Associated
Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI)

Continuous improvement ANZICS CORE Registry Service

• General enhancements of COMET data collection software based on requests from submitting sites.
• Exploration of using COMET for specific research projects and to support the Point Prevalence Studies and other

audit processes that are outside the current remit of the Registries
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Centre for Outcome and Resources Evaluation (CORE)

CORE provides registries services for the benchmarking of Intensive Care outcomes across Australia and New Zealand
with inclusion of other sites beyond Austrasia. This capability is uniquely provided by ANZICS, which offers an overview
across regional, state, federal and international jurisdictions.

AIMS of the CORE ICU Registries 

• Provision of comparative benchmarking reports to submitting ICUs and health departments detailing variation in 
process measures, quality of care indicators and risk-adjusted clinical outcomes

• Identification and analysis of outlier ICUs
• Provision of Data Quality and Education program to support submission of high quality data
• Assist researchers to identify potential areas for improvement of Intensive Care practices and patient outcomes.

Data submitted to the ANZICS CORE Registries supports research on a broad range of areas related to the provision of
Intensive Care including: mortality, disease patterns and the effectiveness of critical care interventions, critical care
workforce, auditing of quality activities, and planning for emerging issues such as pandemics or biosecurity.

Adding to our Clinical team

Alastair McGeorge from Auckland Hospital joined the CORE Management Committee as Associate Director of the Adult
Patient Database (APD). Alastair is working with the CORE team focussing on aspects of data quality and looking at 
strategies to support quality data submission from the submitting units.

Contributions to the ANZICS CORE ICU Registries over time

Fig 1. Contribution to ANZICS CORE Adult Patient
Database (APD)

Fig 2. Contribution to ANZICS CORE Australia and New
Zealand Paediatric Intensive Care (ANZPIC) Registry

Fig 3. Contribution to ANZICS CORE Critical Care
Resources (CCR) Registry   

Fig 4. Contribution to Central Line Associated
Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI)

Continuous improvement ANZICS CORE Registry Service

• General enhancements of COMET data collection software based on requests from submitting sites.
• Exploration of using COMET for specific research projects and to support the Point Prevalence Studies and other

audit processes that are outside the current remit of the Registries
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Centre for Outcome and Resources Evaluation (CORE)

CORE provides registries services for the benchmarking of Intensive Care outcomes across Australia and New Zealand 
with inclusion of other sites beyond Austrasia. This capability is uniquely provided by ANZICS, which offers an overview
across regional, state, federal and international jurisdictions.

AIMS of the CORE ICU Registries 

• Provision of comparative benchmarking reports to submitting ICUs and health departments detailing variation in 
process measures, quality of care indicators and risk-adjusted clinical outcomes

• Identification and analysis of outlier ICUs
• Provision of Data Quality and Education program to support submission of high quality data
• Assist researchers to identify potential areas for improvement of Intensive Care practices and patient outcomes.

Data submitted to the ANZICS CORE Registries supports research on a broad range of areas related to the provision of
Intensive Care including: mortality, disease patterns and the effectiveness of critical care interventions, critical care
workforce, auditing of quality activities, and planning for emerging issues such as pandemics or biosecurity.

Adding to our Clinical team

Alastair McGeorge from Auckland Hospital joined the CORE Management Committee as Associate Director of the Adult
Patient Database (APD). Alastair is working with the CORE team focussing on aspects of data quality and looking at 
strategies to support quality data submission from the submitting units.

Contributions to the ANZICS CORE ICU Registries over time

Fig 1. Contribution to ANZICS CORE Adult Patient
Database (APD)

Fig 2. Contribution to ANZICS CORE Australia and New
Zealand Paediatric Intensive Care (ANZPIC) Registry

Fig 3. Contribution to ANZICS CORE Critical Care
Resources (CCR) Registry

Fig 4. Contribution to Central Line Associated
Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI)

Continuous improvement ANZICS CORE Registry Service

• General enhancements of COMET data collection software based on requests from submitting sites.
• Exploration of using COMET for specific research projects and to support the Point Prevalence Studies and other

audit processes that are outside the current remit of the Registries
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Fig 4. Contribution to Central Line Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI)

CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE ANZICS CORE ICU REGISTRIES OVER TIME

Fig 1. Contribution to ANZICS CORE Adult Patient Database (APD)
Fig 2. Contribution to ANZICS CORE Australia and New Zealand 
Paediatric Intensive Care (ANZPIC) Registry 

 Fig 3. Contribution to ANZICS CORE Critical Care Resources (CCR) Registry 
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CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT ANZICS CORE REGISTRY 
SERVICE 

General enhancements of COMET data collection software 
based on requests from submitting sites. Exploration of 
using COMET for specific research projects and to support 
the Point Prevalence Studies and other audit processes that 
are outside the current remit of the Registries: 

• New workforce section to the Critical Care Resources
Survey to provide a profile of staffing models and shift
patterns for ICU medical and nursing staff

• Inclusion of more detailed data related to interventions
undertaken in the ICU

• Improved validation reports to contributing sites and
validation of data submitted via Clinical Information Systems.

OUTLIER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

The Outlier Programme has reached its 50th assessment 
since its establishment in 2009 and continues to be on 
the forefront supporting ICU benchmarking. The Outlier 
Management process identified 8 Units as potential outliers 
with detailed review of their data undertaken. The finds 
were multifactorial with mix of data quality, case mix and 
resource issues. 

DATATHONS ARE THE NEW “BLACK”

Building on the success of the inaugural ANZICS Intensive 
Care held in 2017 a second event was held in April 2018 at the 
University of Sydney. The event was a collaboration between 
ANZICS, The NSW Agency for Clinical Innovation and The 
University of Sydney. The supporting organisations included 
MIT, Alfred Health, and the College of Intensive Medicine. 
Data hosting services were provided by Google Cloud. 

• New workforce section to the Critical Care Resources Survey to provide a profile of staffing models and shift
patterns for ICU medical and nursing staff

• Inclusion of more detailed data related to interventions undertaken in the ICU
• Improved validation reports to contributing sites and validation of data submitted via Clinical Information Systems.

Outlier Management Program

• The Outlier Programme has reached its 50th assessment since its establishment in 2009 and continues to be on the
forefront supporting ICU benchmarking.

• The Outlier Management process identified 8 Units as potential outliers with detailed review of their data
undertaken. The finds were multifactorial with mix of data quality, case mix and resource issues.

Datathons are the new “black”

Building on the success of the inaugural ANZICS Intensive Care held in 2017 a second event was held in April 2018 at the
University of Sydney. The event was a collaboration between ANZICS, The NSW Agency for Clinical Innovation and The
University of Sydney. The supporting organisations included MIT, Alfred Health, and the College of Intensive Medicine.
Data hosting services were provided by Google Cloud.

The Intensive Care Datathons bring together clinicians, data scientists and innovators in healthcare to work on large
databases of clinical information to answer clinically relevant questions that can make a real difference to patient
outcomes.

Projects undertaken by participants at the 2017 Melbourne event included:
• Assessment of transfers between ICUs throughout Australia and New Zealand 
• Pregnancy related deaths in Australian and New Zealand ICUs
• Using artificial intelligence to predict mortality following cardiac arrest

In less than one year from the Melbourne Datathon, 11 teams who formed on the day have presented their findings at
national and international scientific conferences with publications pending. The Datathon strengthens cross-disciplinary 
collaboration, promotes use of data for knowledge translation, and develops meaningful patient-centred and service-
centred research.

Feedback from 2018 Datathon participants

• Importance of access to data scientists, the ability to formulate a question and to do a reasonable database search

• How a datathon works; the nature of the ICU data available; how to work more effectively in a team

• The power of large datasets / How much you can achieve if you remove the 'boring stuff' from research (applying
for permissions to access data) / Power of working in teams of people with different skill sets

• Making sense of large datasets. Importance of approach to answering specific research questions.

• Value of good collaboration with data scientists, limitations of large data sets, importance of refining a question to 
be answered

• Getting data and organising (and cleaning) the dataset seems to be the hardest part. Input from domain experts are
extremely important for the relevance of the project.
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The Intensive Care Datathons bring together clinicians, data 
scientists and innovators in healthcare to work on large 
databases of clinical information to answer clinically relevant 
questions that can make a real difference to patient outcomes. 
Projects undertaken by participants at the 2017 Melbourne 
event included: 

• Assessment of transfers between ICUs throughout
Australia and New Zealand

• Pregnancy related deaths in Australian and New
Zealand ICUs

• Using artificial intelligence to predict mortality
following cardiac arrest

In less than one year from the Melbourne Datathon, 11 teams who 
formed on the day have presented their findings at national and 
international scientific conferences with publications pending. 
The Datathon strengthens cross-disciplinary collaboration, 
promotes use of data for knowledge translation, and develops 
meaningful patient-centred and service-centred research.  
Feedback from 2018 Datathon participants:

• Importance of access to data scientists, the ability to formulate
a question and to do a reasonable database search

• How a datathon works; the nature of the ICU data available;
how to work more effectively in a team

• The power of large datasets / How much you can achieve
if you remove the ‘boring stuff’ from research (applying for 
permissions to access data) / Power of working in teams  
of people with different skill sets

• Making sense of large datasets. Importance of approach
to answering specific research questions.

• Value of good collaboration with data scientists, 
limitations of large data sets, importance of refining
a question to be answered

• Getting data and organising (and cleaning) the dataset 
seems to be the hardest part. Input from domain experts
are extremely important for the relevance of the project.

CORE (continued)
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INTERNATIONAL ENGAGEMENT 

ANZICS CORE participated in a datathon in Tokyo combining 
Australian, New Zealand, Japanese and American patient 
data. This follows the support provided to the Japanese 
Society of Intensive Care Medicine to develop a Registry that 
is complaint with the ANZICS APD.  Some interesting cultural 
and organisational differences were noticed between the 
health systems while the patient types and outcomes were 
remarkably similar.

Discussions are occurring with other Asian societies who 
are looking for guidance from ANZICS on how to establish 
and maintain patient registries. We hope that this will lead 
to some collaborative research which will help identify areas 
for patient care improvement.

INFRASTRUCTURE

Following the success of hosting the COMET software 
and data at the AIHW we are planning to move the CORE 
Reporting Services to AIHW as well. They have been housed 
on servers at ANZICS in Carlton and with the move of our 
Society it is time to modernise our approach to a more robust 
and secure solution. This is particularly important as we 
consider holding patient identifiers within ANZICS CORE 
and look to link with other Registries.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THE CONTRIBUTORS TO 
CORE

The Registry activity of ANZICS is being recognised as an 
exemplar across Clinical Quality Registries, this does not 
happen without the support of the Jurisdictional funders, the 
work of the data collectors and the hours of support from 
the CORE Management Group, and governing Committee. 
The collaboration with the research community continues to 
grow as shown by the publications that have been based on 
data from the Registries. 

Peter Hicks
Chair, Centre for Research and Evaluation

CORE (continued)

Some interesting cultural and organ-
isational differences were noticed 
between the health systems while the 
patient types and outcomes were 
remarkably similar.... 

“ 

”
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PUBLICATIONS BASED ON ANZICS REGISTRY DATA 

ICU Admissions for Sepsis or Pneumonia in Australia and New Zealand 
in 2017. Burrell A, Huckson S, Pilcher DV; ANZICS. N Engl J Med. 2018 May 
31;378(22):2138-2139. 

Adverse outcomes after planned surgery with anticipated intensive care 
admission in out-of-office-hours time periods: a multicentre cohort study. 
Morgan DJ, Ho KM, Kolybaba ML, Ong YJ; ANZICS Centre for Outcome and 
Resource Evaluation. Br J Anaesth. 2018 Jun;120(6):1420-1428. 

The Melbourne epidemic thunderstorm asthma event 2016: an investigation 
of environmental triggers, effect on health services, and patient risk factors. 
Thien F, Beggs PJ, Csutoros D, Darvall J, Hew M, Davies JM, et al. Lancet Planet 
Health. 2018 Jun;2(6)

Early Hyperoxia in Patients with Traumatic Brain Injury Admitted to Intensive 
Care in Australia and New Zealand: A Retrospective Multicenter Cohort 
Study. Ó Briain D, Nickson C, Pilcher DV, Udy AA. Neurocrit Care. 2018 Jun 8. 

Sample size calculations for cluster randomised crossover trials in 
Australian and New Zealand intensive care research. Arnup SJ, McKenzie 
JE, Pilcher D, Bellomo R, Forbes AB. Crit Care Resusc. 2018 Jun;20(2):117-123. 

Hypercapnia and hypercapnic acidosis in sepsis: harmful, beneficial 
or unclear? Tiruvoipati R, Gupta S, Pilcher D, Bailey M. Crit Care Resusc. 2018 
Jun;20(2):94-100. 

The systemic inflammatory response syndrome criteria and their 
differential association with mortality. Kaukonen K-M, Bailey M, Pilcher D, 
Cooper DJ, Bellomo R. J Crit Care. 2018 Apr 7;46:29–36. 

Paediatric sequential organ failure assessment score (pSOFA): a plea for 
the world-wide collaboration for consensus. Kawasaki T, Shime N, Straney 
L, Bellomo R, MacLaren G, Pilcher D, et al. Intensive Care Med. 2018 Apr 27;

Effect of a National Standard for Deteriorating Patients on Intensive Care 
Admissions Due to Cardiac Arrest in Australia. Jones D, Bhasale A, Bailey 
M, Pilcher D, Anstey MH. Crit Care Med. 2018 Apr;46(4):586–93.

Association of Hypercapnia and Hypercapnic Acidosis With Clinical 
Outcomes in Mechanically Ventilated Patients With Cerebral Injury. 
Tiruvoipati R, Pilcher D, Botha J, Buscher H, Simister R, Bailey M. JAMA Neurol. 
2018 Mar. 

Early glycemia and mortality in critically ill septic patients: Interaction 
with insulin-treated diabetes. Magee F, Bailey M, Pilcher DV, Mårtensson J, 
Bellomo R. J Crit Care. 2018 Mar 3;45:170–1.

Which organ dysfunction scores to use in children with infection? Leclerc 
F, Duhamel A, Leteurtre S, Straney L, Bellomo R, MacLaren G, et al. Intensive 
Care Med. 2018 Mar 22;

Predicting Expected Organ Donor Numbers in Australian Hospitals Outside 
of the Donate-Life Network Using the Anzics Adult Patient Database. O’Brien 
Y, Chavan S, Huckson S, Russ G, Opdam H, Pilcher D. Transplantation. 2018 Feb .

Characteristics, incidence, and outcome of patients admitted to the 
intensive care unit with myasthenia gravis. Al-Bassam W, Kubicki M, Bailey 
M, Walker L, Young P, Pilcher DV, et al. J Crit Care. 2018 Jan 7;45:90–4.

Acute Risk Change: An innovative measure of operative adverse events 
and perioperative team performance. TG Coulson, B Gregson, S Sandys, 
S Nashef, S Webb, M Bailey, C Reid, D Pilcher. Journal of Cardiothoracic and 
Vascular Anesthesia

Patterns of organ donation in children in Australia and New Zealand. 
Corkery-Lavender T, Millar J, Cavazzoni E, Gelbart B.Crit Care Resusc. 2017 
Dec;19(4):296-302.

Patient characteristics, incidence, technique, outcomes and early 
prediction of tracheostomy in the state of Victoria, Australia. A Casamento, 
M Bailey, R Robbins, D Pilcher, S Warrillow, A Ghosh, R Bellomo. Journal of critical 
care 44, Dec 17, 278-284, 

Prognostic accuracy of age-adapted SOFA, SIRS, PELOD-2, and qSOFA 
for in-hospital mortality among children with suspected infection admitted 
to the intensive care unit. Schlapbach LJ, Straney L, Bellomo R, MacLaren G, 
Pilcher D. Intensive Care Med. 2017 Dec 19. 

Age and other perioperative risk factors for postoperative systemic 
inflammatory response syndrome after cardiac surgery. Dieleman JM, 
Peelen LM, Coulson TG, Tran L, Reid CM, Smith JA, Myles PS, Pilcher D. British 
Journal of Anaesthesia 2017 Oct; 119 (4): 637–644

Central line-associated bloodstream infections in Australian ICUs: 
evaluating modifiable and non-modifiable risks in Victorian healthcare 
facilities. Spelman T, Pilcher DV, Cheng AC, Bull AL, Richards MJ, Worth LJ. 
Epidemiol Infect. 2017 Sep 4:1-9. 

Intensity of early correction of hyperglycaemia and outcome of critically 
ill patients with diabetic ketoacidosis. Mårtensson J, Bailey M, Venkatesh B, 
Pilcher D, Deane A, Abdelhamid YA, Crisman M, Verma B, MacIsaac C, Wigmore 
G, Shehabi Y, Suzuki T, French C, Orford N, Kakho N, Prins J, Ekinci EI, Bellomo 
RCrit Care Resusc. 2017 Sep;19(3):266-273.

Identification and assessment of potentially high-mortality intensive care 
units using the ANZICS Centre for Outcome and Resource Evaluation 
clinical registry. McClean K, Mullany D, Huckson S, Lint A van, Chavan S, Hicks 
P, et al. Crit Care Resusc. 2017 Sep;19(3):230–8.

Understanding the cluster randomised crossover design: a graphical 
illustraton of the components of variation and a sample size tutorial. Arnup 
SJ, McKenzie JE, Hemming K, Pilcher D, Forbes AB. Trials. 2017 Aug 15;18(1):381. 

Admission to Intensive Care for Palliative Care or Potential Organ 
Donation: Demographics, Circumstances, Outcomes, and Resource Use. 
Melville A, Kolt G, Anderson D, Mitropoulos J, Pilcher D. Crit Care Med. 2017 Aug 11; 

Declining mortality in critically ill patients with cirrhosis in Australia and 
New Zealand between 2000 and 2015. Majumdar A, Bailey M, Kemp WM, 
Bellomo R, Roberts SK, Pilcher D. J Hepatol. 2017 Aug 9. 

The association between peri-operative acute risk change (ARC) and 
long-term survival after cardiac surgery. Coulson TG, Bailey M, Reid CM, 
Tran L, Mullany DV, Smith JA, et al. Anaesthesia. 2017 Jul 13.

CORE (continued)
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CLINICAL TRIALS GROUP

It has been a busy and challenging 12 months for the Clinical 
Trials Group. TRANSFUSE (fresher vs. standard age red cells) 
and ADRENAL (hydrocortisone vs. placebo in septic shock) 
were both published in the New England Journal of Medicine. 
Our groups track record, now over nearly two decades, of 
conducting large multicentre trials whose results influence 
everyday practice and improve outcomes is unparalleled: 
it is an achievement we all can be justifiably proud of.  
And the results keep on being delivered- SPICE (goal directed 
sedation), TARGET (augmented vs. standard dose enteral 
nutrition) and POLAR (prophylactic hypothermia in TBI) have 
completed recruitment with presentation and publication 
expected in the next few months.

I do wish to highlight the efforts of POLAR team. The manage-
ment team, participating centres, site investigators and 
research coordinators demonstrated remarkable resilience 
and tenacity is completing this study. Traumatic Brain Injury is 
an incredibly challenging area to conduct research in and the 
team’s commitment over nearly a decade demonstrates all that 
is great about our community. Challenges are a constant for 
the clinician researcher. Last year no new CTG endorsed adult 
study proposal received funding from the National Health and 
Medical Research Council (NHMRC): this is only the second 
time this century that has occurred. And funding will only get 
more difficult to obtain. 

The revised NHMRC grant program will see less funding 
available for clinical trials via the new stream of Strategic 
and Leveraging Grants than under the previous project 
grant scheme; however opportunities for the funding of 
clinical trials by Medical Research Future Funds (MRFF) exists.  
As a Society we need engage with the broader community to 
highlight the need for and benefits of critical care research. 
Community support facilitates the development of MRFF 
funding opportunities targeted to our areas of expertise and 
interest-without it the grant programs may not align with our 
specialty. The CTG committee continues to engage with 
other bodies including the Australian Clinical Trials Alliance 
to prosecute our agenda.

I wish to thank all our sponsors and supports for their help 
over the last twelve months, the ANZICS CTG staff (Donna 
Goldsmith and Simone Rickerby), and final everyone in the 
CTG community for their fantastic effort. It is indeed an honour 
to be part of such a fantastic and productive community.

Craig French 
Chair, Clinical Trials Group
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DEATH AND ORGAN DONATION COMMITTEE 

2017/2018 proved to be a busy year for the DODC with 
the near completion of the fourth edition of the Australian 
and New Zealand Intensive Care Society (ANZICS) 
Statement on death and organ donation. The role of this 
document is to provide a basis for professional practice.  
The Statement is intended to provide a relevant and accessible 
resource for intensive care specialists (intensivists) and other 
health professionals involved in the determination of death 
and in the care of potential organ and tissue donors and 
their families. It encourages consistency of approach in 
addressing clinical issues, caring for families, and engaging 
with other expert opinion in Australia and New Zealand. 
The list of recommendations given in the statement have 
been developed by the ANZICS Death and Organ Donation 
Committee based on review of the law, medical literature 
and Committee consensus. 

A consultation draft was sent to external stakeholders 
including jurisdictional representatives, medical specialties 
and ANZICS and CICM members. The committee is aiming 
to finalise the fourth edition by the 2018 ASM. 

I had the pleasure of representing ANZICS and attending the 
2-day global consensus on “The World Brain Death Project”
and presenting on the state of Palliative / End-of-Life Care in
Australia at the World Congress of Intensive Care and Critical 
Care Medicine in Rio de Janeiro in November 2017. At the
2-day consensus meeting there was broad agreement on the 
priorities for the achievement of global consensus regarding
brain death determination with a particular focus on raising
/ establishing minimum standards for determination, both
clinical criteria and ancillary testing criteria.

END-OF-LIFE CARE WORKING GROUP (EOLCWG) 

The ANZICS EOLCWG plans to review the ANZICS Statement 
on Care and Decision Making at the End-of-Life for the 
Critically Ill which was published in 2014. The EOLCWG will 
be consulting the ANZICS membership regarding the utility 
of the Statement. ANZICS receives requests to reference 
the Statement for the development of related educational 
resources. This Committee has not met during the 2017 to 
2018 period.

I wish to thank all committee members, Stewart Moodie (SA, 
Deputy Chair), Rob Bevan (CICM), Jorge Brieva (NSW), David 
Cook (QLD), Rohit D’Costa (Vic), Geoffrey Dobb (WA), Ben 
Gelbart (Paediatric), Sarah Jones (NT), James Judson (NZ), 
Lucy Modra (Trainee), Helen Opdam (OTA), Chris Poynter 
(NZ), Stephen Streat (ODNZ), 

And finally, I would like to thank the ANZICS staff for the time, 
effort and expertise in supporting the committee’s work.

William Silvester 
Chair, Death and Organ Donation Committee 
and End of Life Care Working Group 
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EDUCATION

A sparkling new ANZICS Education Committee came together 
earlier this year. The new Committee members bring valuable 
expertise and experience, as well as diverse representation 
and perspectives, to the team. We have put considerable 
effort into examining our core purpose and the opportunities 
we have for the future. Despite our diversity, we have a shared 
vision: to improve intensive care education by supporting an 
active community of interprofessional clinician educators 
and by enhancing access to educational resources, always 
with the ultimate goal of improving the care of our patients.

The ANZICS Education Committee is actively involved 
in the development of the interdisciplinary Australia and 
New Zealand Clinician Educators Network (ICU). This is a 
grassroots movement that promotes the role and activities 
of Clinician Educators and is supported by ANZICS and 
our collaborating organisations, including ACCCN, CICM, 
ICN, and SMACC. Notably, the Network is holding its 
first ‘Unconference’ on Wednesday October 10th, 2018 
in Adelaide, the day before the ANZICS/ ACCCN Annual 
Scientific Meeting. The Unconference will involve participants 
actively learning and working together to tackle ‘real world’ 
issues, such as educator faculty development, workplace 
learning, and interprofessional education. Those interested 
in attending this free event (either in person or remotely) can 
complete an expression of interest via this link: https://litfl.
org/Unconf2018_EOI.

Another key priority for the ANZICS Education Committee 
is to further define the scope of ANZICS within the 
interprofessional intensive care education space, so that 
we can address unmet needs and collaborate even more 
effectively with CICM and other organisations. We also look 
forward to supporting the educational content and strategies 
of the soon-to-be-revamped ANZICS website, ANZICS social 
media activities, and future courses and conferences – 
especially the rapidly approaching 2019 World Congress 
of Intensive Care.

Finally, we are beginning to lay the groundwork for novel 
strategies for increasing the capacity for interprofessional 
intensive care education across Australia and New Zealand. 

Our initial focus is on the creation of a faculty development 
programme in 2019, most likely involving an ‘incubator’ for 
clinician educators. Watch this space!

These are exciting times in intensive care education. The 
ANZICS Education Committee invites all members of our 
community to engage with us in creating the future of 
intensive care education.

Chris Nickson
Chair, Education
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PAEDIATRIC REPORT

The Paediatric Committee membership and meeting frequency 
has declined in recent years, partly because of increased 
activity of associated groups such as the Paediatric Studies 
Group and the Registry Clinical Advisory Committee. 
However, there are plans to rejuvenate the Committee in the 
coming months and re-establish regular meetings. Paediatric 
involvement and representation is important for a healthy and 
dynamic Society that can reflect the full range of Intensive 
Care practice in our region.

ANZPIC REGISTRY

Dr Tony Slater is stepping down as Director of the ANZPIC 
Registry to concentrate on his new appointment as Director 
of ICU at the Lady Cilento Children’s Hospital in Brisbane. 
Tony has steered the Registry since its inception in 1997 
and overseen its growth from a far-sighted idea to a robust 
and comprehensive binational database. We would like to 
take this opportunity to thank Tony for his sustained and 
Herculean efforts for the last 15 years and wish him all the 
best in his new post. Dr Johnny Millar will be taking over as 
the Director of the Registry.

Data for the 2013 Annual Report have been finalised and 
distributed to contributing units, with the complete report to 
be published shortly. The Report continues to grow; 11,000 
paediatric admissions to ICUs were documented in 2013. 
The Report also contains more detailed data pertaining to 
both respiratory therapy and extracorporeal life support, 
reflecting evolving changes in practice. 

ANZPICR CLINICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

The ANZPICR Clinical Advisory Committee has met regularly 
over the last year and is a valuable forum in which to 
discuss strategic planning for the Registry, address specific 
questions and problems regarding data collection and 
interpretation and develop mechanisms to investigate data 
outliers. Preliminary unit-identified outcome data from each 
year are reviewed and discussed by the representatives 
from each specialist PICU prior to publication of the Annual 
Report. The committee also reviews data requests and 
research proposals. There are ongoing discussions about 
data linkage between the Registry (as part of CORE) and 
other national databases to improve access to long-term 
outcome data.

PAEDIATRIC INDEX OF MORTALITY (PIM)3

The most recent iteration of the paediatric index of mortality, 
PIM3, has been completed using data from the Registry and 
from the UK PICANet and was published in late 2013. The 
utility of this locally-developed scoring system has been 
gaining increasing international recognition and is becoming 
more widespread. Local (Australia and New Zealand) 
calibrations are used for the calculation of standardised 
mortality ratios published by ANZPICR.
Paediatric Studies Group

The Paediatric Study Group has had a busy period, having 
completed a number of studies and embarking on several 
new projects. The committee has been stable now for a 
number of years and has managed to oversee a period of 
excellent collaboration between the 8 paediatric ICU’s in 
Australia and New Zealand.

The Hypothermia in Traumatic Brain Injury in Children (HITBIC) 
study has now been completed and the manuscript is under 
revision for publication. This was a great collaborative project 
for our group and emphasized some of the difficulties in 
doing research in paediatric intensive care. It coincided with 
other trials in Canada (HypHIT) and the US (Coolkids). The 
HITBIC results have been presented at a number of forums 
(CTG Noosa, PALISI meeting in Chicago and ANZICS ASM) 

Major activity in the PSG revolves around the SPICE (Sedation 
Practices in ICU) programme in children: 

An observational study looking at sedation practices in PICU 
(Baby SPICE) was completed in mid-May 2013 and was 

presented at the PICU World Congress in Istanbul.

The study was supported by an unrestricted grant from 
Hospira® and a seeding grant from the Princess Margaret 
Hospital Foundation. An RCT of Early Goal Directed Sedation is 
being planned with an NHMRC grant application in preparation, 
also funded by Hospira® and the PMH Foundation. 
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A Management Committee has been established to work on 
the grant application with assistance from the ANZIC-RC. A 
pilot study is about to start in 5 PICUs, results of which will 
aid the NHMRC grant application and hopefully lead to a 
phase III RCT.

The SAFE-EPIC Study was an international point prevalence 
study looking at fluid resuscitation in PICU that has now been 
completed. The PI is Marino Festa who has managed to 
include over 120 PICU’s internationally for 2 point prevalence 
days. This study was funded by a seeding grant from ANZICS. 
The results were presented at the PICU World Congress 
in Istanbul this year. Other PSG studies in development or 
being completed include:

Inception study on transfusion practice in peri-operative 
congenital heart disease (CHD): A multi-centre observational 
inception study with the aim to describe red blood cell 
transfusion practice and “quality” of red blood cells transfused 
by clinicians, in Australasia and North America, in children 
with congenital heart defects (CHD). Dr. Elena Cavazzoni 
(Westmead Children’s) is the PI. Epidemiology of Paediatric 
Chronic Critical Illness in Australia and New Zealand. An 
epidemiological study looking at the outcome of long-stay 
PICU patients. The PI for the study is Siva Namachivayam 
from Royal Children’s Hospital, Victoria. This study has been 
completed and a manuscript is about to be submitted for 
publication

MELBOURNE ASM

This year’s ASM is keenly anticipated and excellent 
international speakers have been secured for the paediatric 
programme. Professor Pat Kochanek, Editor of Pediatric 
Critical Care Medicine and Kevin Morris, President of the 
UK Paediatric Intensive Care Society will both contribute to 
what promises to be a great couple of days in Melbourne.

Johnny Millar
Chair, Paediatrics

PAEDIATRIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
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PRACTICE AND ECONOMICS

ANZICS and Price are committed to a sustainable, adequately 
remunerated, healthy workforce that continues to deliver high 
quality intensive care. The committee has been focusing on 
the Department of Health MBS Review and Burnout. 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH MBS ITEM REVIEWS

The ICU/ED Clinical Committee meetings finished in 2016. 
The report was released last year for public consultation 
and we are still awaiting the report for the Medicare Benefits 
Schedule Review Taskforce to forward the recommendations 
to Government. The recommendations include a MBS item 
for ‘goals of care’ discussion and a MSAC assessment for 
listing an MBS item for rapid response system/code blue 
attendances. There has also been proposed changes to the 
echocardiography MBS item numbers. There is a proposal 
to restructure the existing echocardiography items into 
six new items. These changes can be seen in the Cardiac 
Services report. 

BURN-OUT

The Burnout Survey has commenced and we invite members 
to participate in this important survey investigating the 
frequency of occupational burnout and the workplace factors 
associated with it among intensivists. Your participation in 
this study is completely voluntary. The information you 
supply is not identifiable once it is submitted. The purpose of 
this study is to assess the current frequency and severity of 
features of burnout in practicing intensivists in Australia and 
New Zealand and to determine the associated workplace 
factors. This information will be used to develop strategies 
and advise policies aimed at prevention and assisting those 
who are experiencing its effects. The Practice and Economics 
Committee (PRICE) thanks Shona Mair, a Paediatric CICM 
trainee from Queensland for all her work. 

Further information can be found in the enclosed participant 
information sheet. To access this survey please click on 
this link: https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/LLV575P 

Mark Nicholls
Chair, Practice and Economics



ANZICS   ANNUAL REPORT    2018  19

ANZICS    ANNUAL REPORT    2018

SAFETY & QUALITY

In 2017/2018 the Safety and Quality Committee has been 
striving to advance intensive care practice to achieve possible 
outcomes for patients and their families. The Committee meets 
regularly throughout the year, reporting back to ANZICS 
members via the Intensivist Newsletter. Every Australian and 
New Zealand region was represented this year along with 
a paediatric representative, a trainee representative, and a 
nurse from the Australian College of Critical Care Nurses and 
the New Zealand College of Critical Care Nurses. 

The Committee finalised the results of the 2016 Rapid 
Response Team Registry Feasibility Survey. The aim of the 
survey was to obtain information regarding the potential 
support for and feasibility of a bi-national RRT registry and 
in particular what the minimum dataset for such a registry 
would include. In summary, the overall response rate was 
low which is likely to bias results in favour of enthusiastic 
units with established RRTs. From responding units there 
was broad support (>90%) for the majority of the proposed 
minimum data elements with the exceptions being patient 
identifiers (name, date of birth and hospital UR), date of 
hospital discharge, time of hospital discharge and time of 
hospital admission%. Interestingly the patient identifiers were 
being collected by >90% of responding units in contrast to 
the date and timing data elements which were collected less 
consistently. Although these elements did not receive >90% 
support, in practice patient identifiers are a requirement for 
clinical quality registries, to allow appropriate linkage with 
other registries and databases.  

Furthermore, the date and time elements could be obtained 
through linkage with hospital administrative databases with the 
use of these identifiers. Less reliably collected data elements 
were parent unit 81%, treatment limitations pre-call 69% and 
treatment limitations post call 76%. The responding units 
currently collecting the proposed minimum dataset could form 
the basis of any pilot feasibility studies for a RRT registry if 
appropriate funding and logistic support were to be available.

The Committee worked collaboratively with ANZICS CORE 
to prepare an abstract and poster presentation at the 
2018 Choosing Wisely National Symposium held on 25 
May at the Canberra Convention Centre. The authors were 
able to demonstrate that ANZICS registry data variables 
can be used to assess the ICU related Choosing Wisely 
recommendations. The data indicated there has been 
consistently high compliance with process of care that 
address a number of the recommendations. The Committee 
will continue to optimise opportunities to evaluate and report 
on the Choosing Wisely recommendations using the existing 
data sources available through the ANZICS registries. 

The Committee was also responsible for maintaining the 
suite of resources available to assist ICU clinicians prevent 
CLABSI. The Committee his currently finalising a review of 

the publication ‘Central Line Insertion and Maintenance 
Guideline (April 2012)’.

I would like to acknowledge the work of A/Prof Daryl Jones 
and the Organising Committee including: Alex Psirides, 
Deepak Bhonagiri, Jonathan Barrett, Judy Currey, Ken 
Hillman, Liz Fugaccia, Manoj Singh, and Jenny Holmes 
(ANZICS), who organised the annual Safety and Quality 
Conference in August 2017. The event took place at the 
Sofitel Sydney Wentworth 7 – 8 August 2017. There were 338 
registered delegates. The organising committee prepared 
an educational program focusing on how to make hospital 
systems safe for deteriorating patients, the importance of 
investing in patient safety and the risks associated with 
clinical deterioration. There was an expansion of the scope 
of the conference beyond rapid response systems to the 
broader concept of safety and quality in the in the intensive 
care with a strong emphasis on supporting the team.  
The organising committee received 46 abstract submissions, 
of which 18 were accepted for oral presentation during the 
conference. 

Many of the presentations were again recorded and uploaded 
over time onto the ANZICS You Tube Channel https://www.
youtube.com/channel/UCVU_LWubvrXrNklrEHcv7jA. We 
were grateful for the generous support from Industry through 
sponsorship and exhibition, in particular Masimo Australia 
(Silver Sponsor), Edwards Lifesciences, iMD Soft, Medtronic 
Australasia, Nervecentre Software, Patientrack, Philips 
Healthcare, and Zoll Medical. 

I would like to acknowledge and thank all members of the 
Committee for all their hard work including: Michael Ashbolt 
(TAS); Lewis Campbell (NT); Arthas Flabouris (SA); Craig Carr 
(NZ); Judit Orosz (VIC); Deepak Bhonagiri (NSW); Simon 
Towler (WA); Tali Gadish (Paediatrics); Mary Pinder (CICM); 
Gladness Nethathe (Trainee Representative); Malcolm Elliott 
(ACCCN) and Leah Hackney (NZCCCN). I would also like 
to recognise the contribution of all ANZICS members in 
providing feedback to the Safety and Quality committee. 
The Committee is open to any comments or suggestions you 
may have and we invite you to be in touch by contacting: 
safetyandquality@anzics.com.au.

John Gowardman
Chair, Safety and Quality 
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WOMEN IN INTENSIVE CARE MEDICINE 
(WIN-ANZICS)

Over the past twelve months, the Women in Intensive Care 
Medicine Network formally joined ANZICS as a Standing 
Committee. This exciting development is a natural fit for both 
groups, now working together to improve the representation 
of women in all aspects of intensive care medicine in 
Australia and New Zealand. The EOI process resulted in 
the appointment of a fantastic committee with a broad mix 
of skills and experience. 

The current committee comprises of: 

Chair:	 	 Dr Lucy Modra

Deputy Chair:	     Dr Sarah Yong

IT Coordinator:	 	 Dr Tamishta Hensman

Social Media Coordinator:         Dr Sandra Lussier

Events Coordinator:	 Dr Nicky Dobos

ACT Representative:	               Prof Imogen Mitchell

New Zealand Representative:    Dr Kate Tietjens

NT Representative:	 A/Prof Dianne Stephens

NSW Representative:	      Dr Danielle Austin

Paediatric Representative:    	 Dr Tali Gadish

Queensland Representative: Dr Angelly Martinez

Tasmania Representative:	 Dr David Rigg

Victorian Representative: 	 Dr Li Tan

WA Representative:		  Dr Vanessa Carnegie

The SA Representative position is currently vacant and we 
welcome expressions of interest for this role (email anzics@
anzics.com.au). 

Dr Tamishta Hensman continues to lead the development 
of our website (womenintensive.org), with a growing library 
of resources on the gender gap in intensive care and in 
academic medicine, and scholarships for women pursuing 
research and leadership goals. We are soon to launch a 
metrics page, tracking contemporary data on the proportion 
of women working and holding leadership roles in intensive 
care medicine. 

Last year WIN worked with the College to develop their 
‘Guideline for Achieving Gender Balance at CICM events’. 
This College endorsed document provides an evidence-
based approach to improving female representation at 
CICM conferences, in all conference-related roles including 
speakers, session chairs and conference convenors. 

The WIN-ANZICS Committee is working on formal proposals 
to improve female representation in other domains. We also 
have a WIN Representative (Dr Lucy Modra) sitting on the 
CICM Communications Course Committee, developing new 
content on speaking up against bullying, harassment and 
discrimination in the ICU. 

WIN-NSW recently hosted a fantastic dinner, with Dr 
Mary Pinder (CICM Vice-President) presenting strategies 
for success in the fellowship exam. Dr Yasmine Ali-
Abdelhamid (Victorian Regional Chair, ANZICS Board) and 
Dr Carol Hodgson (Deputy Director, ANZIC-RC) both spoke 
passionately about the challenges and rewards of a career 
in intensive care research at WIN-Victoria’s networking 
dinner in March. 

Looking ahead, WIN-Victoria is proud to be hosting Nobel-
Peace Prize winner and RACS trainee chair Dr Ruth Mitchell, 
and neuro-intensive care researcher Dr Virginia Newcombe 
at our October networking dinner. 

Overall, it’s an exciting time to be a woman in intensive 
care medicine… even if we’re still a minority. If you would 
like to get involved, please contact Lucy and Sarah at 
womenintensivenetwork@gmail.com. 

Dr Lucy Modra, Chair &
Dr Sarah Yong, Deputy Chair
WIN-ANZICS
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VICTORIA 

The past year has been very productive for Victorian  ANZICS 
members with a strong focus on educational initiatives. The 
success of these initiatives was highly contingent on the efforts 
of all the members who contributed and the hard work of 
members is greatly appreciated.

The Critical Care Collaborative (CCC) was once again held 
in August and focused on a range of topical issues affecting 
ICUs in our state. The CCC was well-attended and continues 
to be a truly multidisciplinary event on the ANZICS calendar. 
Thank you to Dr Diane Kelly and Alissa Starritt for convening. 
Thank you also to all the members who were invited speakers.

In 2018, there has been increased attention on regional 
activities. The Bendigo Regional Critical Care Conference 
was held in May with the theme ‘Risky Business: Learning 
from Experience’. Thank you to Dr Timothy Chimunda who 
was the medical lead for the conference. Plans are currently 
underway for the 2019 conference and ANZICS is proud to be 
an official event supporter in 2019. This year will also see the 
inaugural Bendigo Health Datathon held in September. The 
Bendigo Datathon is a collaborative effort of Bendigo Health, 
the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), La 
Trobe University, the University of Wollongong and ANZICS. 
The focus is ‘Critical Care Recovery’ and, like previous ANZICS 
datathons, it is set to be a highly successful event. Thank you 
to Dr Tim Chimunda and Dr Cameron Knott for their efforts in 
organising the Datathon.

Victorian ANZICS has continued to work closely this year 
with the Women in Intensive Care Network (WIN) and ANZICS 
remains unwavering in its commitment to diversity and non-
discrimination. WIN was originally formed to address the 
gender imbalance in Australasian intensive care medicine 
through advocacy, research and providing networking 
opportunities for female intensive care doctors. Therefore, the 
Board was pleased to welcome WIN as a formal committee of 
ANZICS this year. The WIN dinner with the theme of ‘Women 
in Research’ was held in Melbourne in April. Thank you to Dr 
Carol Hodgson for speaking and to Dr Lucy Modra, Dr Sarah 
Yong and Dr Nicky Dobos for organising the dinner.

ANZICS Victoria has also continued to engage in a number 
of international ventures. Preparation for the 2019 WFSICCM 
World Congress of Critical Care to be held in Melbourne 
is underway. The World Congress is set to be the largest 
gathering of critical care societies from more than 80 countries. 
Thank you to Dr Stephen Warrillow for his work in convening 
this highly anticipated meeting. A large number of Victorian 
intensivists also participated in the 2018 Singapore ANZICS 
meeting, a joint venture with the Singapore Society of Intensive 

Care Medicine. Many speakers funded their own attendance 
in order to allow the conference to subsidise the attendance 
of delegates from Low and Middle Income Countries. Thank 
you to Dr David Ku for his role as conference convenor and 
to the self-funded speakers for their generosity.

While South Australia has been chosen as the venue for the 
43rd ANZICS/ACCCN Annual Scientific Meeting (ASM) to be 
held on 11-13 October 2018 at the Adelaide Convention Centre, 
a significant number of Victorian ANZICS members have also 
worked tirelessly to organise the ASM. I sincerely thank A/
Prof Adam Deane, Dr Johnny Millar and Dr Matt Maiden, who 
have worked alongside A/Prof Mary White and me to plan the 
ASM, in conjunction with the ACCCN. We anticipate an exciting 
and quality scientific program with a number of high profile 
international speakers. We hope to see many of you there.

Finally, on a clinical front, in the setting of multiple mass 
casualty events in Victoria in 2017, ANZICS Victoria is 
seeking to collaborate with the Victorian DHHS to potentially 
develop a critical care mobile phone application to facilitate 
communication between ICUs. Such an app would allow rapid 
information sharing in case of pandemics of communicable 
diseases, mass casualty emergencies or natural disasters. 
Thank you to Gian Sberna and Dr Jai Darvall and Dr Caleb 
Fisher for their work on this important ongoing project.

I would like to conclude by thanking Kimberley Haines and 
Dr Max Moser who serve as office-bearers on the Victorian 
ANZICS Regional Committee. The Victorian ANZICS Committee 
would also like to thank the ANZICS staff for all of their support 
and practical help behind the scenes over the past year. Given 
the high level of engagement among the ANZICS community 
in Victoria, it is possible that I have forgotten to specifically 
thank some members for their work in my report. Thank you 
to all of the Victorian ANZICS members who have continued 
to represent Victoria on the various ANZICS Committees and 
contributed tirelessly to local ANZICS activities.

Yasmine Ali Abdelhamid 
Chair, Victoria
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TASMANIA

It has been another busy 12 months for intensive care 
in Tasmania. There has been a constant and high level 
of throughput through all units, the CICM ASM, and the 
commencement of cardiothoracic surgery at Calvary 
Hospital in Lenah Valley. In the background there has been 
ongoing work on state-wide health service restructure with 
the appointment of local clinical stream leads to facilitate 
change on a local hospital level. The RHH Redevelopment 
continues and, although does not directly involve intensive 
care, ANZICS will need to continue to monitor its indirect 
effects on patients.  

Unfortunately, our Emergency Departments in Hobart and 
Launceston have been in the news recently for severe and 
continued episodes of overcrowding and ambulance ramping 
due to bed block. This has led to a large amount of negative 
publicity for the both Hospitals despite the good intentions 
and hard work of staff. Although somewhat insulated from 
emergency department issues, pressures on staff in intensive 
care remain high, and the underlying issue of bed block 
is of course not isolated to the emergency department. 
Hospital administrators will need to consider intensive care 
as part of a whole hospital response to bed block. ANZICS 
and Intensive care physicians should continue to advocate 
for patients adversely effected by bed block, and for the 
early retrieval of critically ill patients from the emergency 
department whenever possible. 

Despite its relatively small size the Tasmanian Intensive care 
units continue to punch above their weight in research, are 
involved in many ANZICS-CTG trials, and make ongoing 
contributions to ANZICS CORE. All units maintain an ongoing 
strong educational focus and continue to attract trainees 
from both Australia and overseas. Tasmania can provide 
all elements of the CICM training program including senior 
registrar posts consistent with the colleges expectations of 
“on call” experience. CICM “transitional” roles are available 
to for the appropriate candidate. Currently, all units are 
accredited for CICM training with Launceston and Hobart 
both accredited as “general units” suitable for core training, 
and the NWRH for foundation and rural training.

This year Tasmania held the CICM Annual Scientific Meeting 
in Hobart. More than 500 delegates were treated to great 
academic and social programs. 

This was a significant achievement for our local group of 
intensivists, which have continued its good work on other 
CICM/ANZICS/ACCCN co-badged events. We now have an 
Annual Tasmanian Intensive Care Educational Meeting, with 
the next scheduled for October with an obstetric intensive 
care theme.

Society membership has remained stable, and the output of 
our representatives on ANZICS committees is greatly valued, 
especially considering the small number of Intensivists in the 
state. I would like to formally recognise and thank them for 
their contributions, and hope that Tasmania will continue to 
be a valuable contributor to ANZICS and its subcommittees 
for many years to come!

Michael Ashbolt
Chair, Tasmania
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QUEENSLAND

Over the past twelve months, Queensland’s main focus has 
been the largely successful ASM held on the Gold Coast 
in October. This meeting exceeded expectations, attracting 
1100 delegates over the three-day conference. I would 
like to thank the hard work of the entire multi-disciplinary 
Organising Committee, led by Prof Jeremy Cohen (Adult 
Convenor) and Dr Phil Sargent (Paediatric Convenor) in 
driving this successful conference. 

Industrially, we had a meeting with the member of the 
negotiating team of ASMOFQ (Australian Salaried Medical 
Officers Federation Queensland) for MOCA (Medical Officers 
Certified agreement) 5. This meeting was telecast across 
Queensland so that all the ANZICS members are given an 
opportunity to put forward their suggestions. It is important 
to ensure that the next agreement maintains the Status Quo 
on the “Extended hours clause”.

We are negotiating for a MOCA 5 agreement that provides:
a 5% salary increase per year for the three years of the 
agreement; increased professional development leave and 
allowances;indexing allowances which haven’t previously 
been indexed; and travel provisions to support doctors 
working in regional public hospitals. We are likely to have 
further meetings with the negotiating team of ASMOFQ to 
get an update on the progress of the negotiations.

The Cerner ieMR (Integrated Electronic Medical Record) 
implementation particularly the prescribing module has 
created several issues in a regional ICU in Queensland. 
The Director of ICU expressed concern about the 
prescribing module of the system to the Hospital 
Executive. Queensland ANZICS has been in touch with the 
Intensivists in the regional hospital to offer them appropriate 
support. As a part of this, Dr Stephen Warrillow, ANZICS 
President, sent a well drafted letter to Mr Steven Miles,  
Queensland Health Minster. 

Rajeev Hegde 
Chair, Queensland
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NEW ZEALAND

The 2018 New Zealand ASM was held in Auckland, hosted 
by the Starship Children’s Hospital. Our conference convenor 
Dr Anusha Ganeshalingham put together a great program for 
the three-day event under the theme “Size Does Matter”. The 
main speakers included Northland GP Dr Lance O’Sullivan 
and Brisbane social worker Liz Crowe as well as many 
medical, nursing and allied health professionals from Starship, 
Auckland and around New Zealand. And on the evening 
of the Gala Dinner we were entertained by a memorable 
Q & A session with sporting super-star couple Richie and 
Gemma Mc Caw. 

Next year’s ASM will be a return to more adult intensive care, 
with North Shore Hospital, Auckland again taking on the 
role of hosting the event. We look forward to seeing many 
of you there for another chance to meet up with old friends, 
make new connections and get updated on how we do can 
do Intensive Care even better in 2019. 

The Biennial NZ Intensive Care Research Symposia continue 
to successfully bring together intensive care researchers and 
research co-ordinators from around the Country to discuss 
current and future research directions. The next Meeting will 
be the 4th, to be held in Wellington again in late October to 
discuss various studies, including those sponsored by the 
ANZICS Clinical Trials Group.

Our membership numbers continue to increase with a 
total of 113 NZ members at the last count. Your continued 
support enables ANZICS to continue to provide the great 
service to the intensive care community through CORE, the 
CTG and other committees. And crucially, your support for 
the New Zealand ASM provides us with funds to support 
local education and research. Thank you to all of you who 
contribute, especially those who put in the time to organise 
and convene meetings and to represent NZ on the various 
ANZICS Committees and Working Groups. 

Ben Barry
Chair, New Zealand
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NEW SOUTH WALES

New South Wales continues to present a busy and dynamic 
landscape for intensive care, with a number of hospitals 
undergoing expansion or renewal. St George Hospital 
opened a new ICU in November 2017. The Northern Beaches 
Hospital is scheduled to open in late 2018. Expansions are 
planned at Nepean and Prince of Wales Hospitals and the 
2018 state budget included funding for a new research and 
education precinct at Liverpool Hospital in Sydney’s west.  
Development of the NSW Health Scope of Clinical Practice 
for Intensive Care is in its final stages.

The electronic Record for Intensive Care (eRIC) continues to 
roll out across the state. Integration of intensive care clinical 
information systems such as eRIC, with other hospital eHealth 
programmes, presents interesting challenges that will no 
doubt continue with the progressive computerisation of our 
healthcare system.

A number of education and networking events have taken 
place. The ANZICS CORE Datathon was held at the University 
of Sydney in April and was a resounding success thanks to 
the hard work of conveners from ANZICS CORE - Peter Hicks, 
David Pilcher and Sue Huckson, and Intensive Care NSW 
(Agency for Clinical Innovation) - Sean Kelly, Kelly Cridland, 
Nhi Nguyen and Helen Badge, and many others, who all 
deserve congratulations.

The Women in Intensive Care Network (WIN) in NSW continues 
to generate networking and educational events, most recently 
a dinner on July 24 where Mary Pinder (CICM Vice-President) 
gave an illuminating presentation on techniques for passing 
the ICU fellowship exam. Thanks goes to Theresa Jacques 
and Nhi Nguyen for their ongoing efforts and collaboration in 
this sphere, as WIN becomes incorporated into ANZICS as a 
Committee, with myself standing in as NSW Representative.

Critical Care Pearls, an education series presented by 
Swapnil Pawar (Education Committee Vice-Chair and NSW 
Representative) has included monthly talks from experts in 
the field on topics ranging from ethics in intensive care, to ICU 
ecology, to the use of echocardiography for fluid assessment. 
These sessions are telecast live and are available online, for 
those unable to attend in person.

Staging weeknight meetings in Sydney requires acknowledge-
ment of several challenges including geographic dispersion, 
peak-hour traffic and busy rosters. I ask all members to 
keep an eye open for advertised meetings and encourage 
your staff, including trainees, to attend these valuable and 
worthwhile events. 

For those in rural and regional areas I encourage the use 
of interactive networking technology to allow us all to stay 
in touch. 

The efforts of all members in continuing to promote the 
benefits and contribution of ANZICS to the intensive care 
community (medical, nursing and allied health) is much 
appreciated. Please contact me with any requests, questions 
or ideas as to how we can strengthen our professional 
networks and support members.

Looking forward at the time of writing, the ANZICS 
CTG Winter Forum (August 27-28) and the International 
Hypothermia and Temperature Management Symposium 
(August 28-30) promises a blockbuster week to round out 
winter. Although between statewide drought conditions 
and the late flu season, it has not quite been a typical 
winter season.

I would like to thank all the intensivists in NSW, including 
and in addition to those already mentioned, who contribute 
invaluable time and energy through their work on ANZICS 
Committees. In particular, thanks to the outgoing NSW 
Regional Chair Mark Nicholls, who remains active as Chair 
of the PricE Committee, for your support and dedicated 
contribution to intensive care in NSW and nationally.

Danielle Austin
Chair, New South Wales
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WESTERN AUSTRALIA

This year has seen the successful opening of the Perth Children’s 
Hospital (finally) and the transition across from the Princess 
Margaret Site appeared to go well. Around the rest of the 
state there have been no major changes. For the trainees we 
have moved to a state-based system for allocation of senior 
registrar positions. This has allowed greater collaboration 
between the three major tertiary departments with the aim 
that all trainees get exposed to all areas of intensive care 
within their training. We will monitor this and may move to 
a similar model for junior trainees as well.

Research in Intensive Care has unfortunately had significant 
issues.  A new interpretation of the Guardianship Act has 
meant that all research utilising waivers or any forms of next 
of kin consent has been essentially halted. The Guardianship 
Act is silent in WA on NOK consent and while previously 
research has been allowed, the new interpretation means that 
until amendments to the act are approved, further research 
will be significantly affected. ANZICS has been one of the 
first professional bodies to pick up on this and advocate to 
the Minister for Health and the Attorney General (thank you 
to Stephen Warrillow and Craig French for the support). 

We have also had support from the College of Intensive 
Care as well as Emergency and Neurology Scientific 
Associations and consumer/patient representatives. We 
are all concerned that our patients have had their access to 
potentially beneficial research impaired and will continue to 
advocate for resolution of this issue.

The Intensive Care Network continues great work in the 
Education sphere as well as organising Trainee Presentation 
nights to allow presentation of formal projects. Anthony 
Tzannes the Education Representative has done great 
work in getting his airway course accredited and is well 
subscribed. ANZICS will continue to support and drive 
education opportunities.

Sacha Schweikert has taken over the CTG role as Ed Litton 
has moved to coordinate the Critical Care Resources Registry. 
Both Sacha and Ed continue to do great work. Geoff Dobb 
has moved back into the DODC role to assist with the next 
version of the Death and Organ Donation Guidelines.

I would like to thank all of the Western Australia Representatives 
on the ANZICS Committees for all of their work in progressing 
and supporting intensive care practice. 

Bradley Wibrow
Chair, Western Australia
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MATT SPENCE MEDAL

The Matt Spence Award is a highly sought-after prize by Researchers interested 
in intensive care. The Matt Spence prize is named after the Society’s first 
President (1975) and co-founder of the organisation, Dr Matthew Spence.

The winners of previous awards follow:

PAST ANZICS PRESIDENTS

ANZICS AWARDS

1981	 Dr S Streat		 Auckland
1982	 Dr S Gatt		 Sydney
1983	 Dr R Raper		 Sydney
1984	 Dr N Gibbs		 Perth
1985	 Dr W Griggs		 Adelaide
1986	 Dr A Bersten		 Adelaide
1987	 Dr M Oliver		 Auckland
1988	 Dr P McQuillan		 Perth
1989	 Dr T Buckley		 Hong Kong
1990	 Dr C McAllister		 Sydney
1991	 Dr R Bellomo		 Melbourne
1992	 Dr S Parkes		 Adelaide
1993	 Dr R Totaro		 Sydney
1994	 No award presented		 NA

1995	 Dr A Davies		 Melbourne
1996	 Dr B Venkatesh		 Brisbane
1997	 Dr D Blythe		 Perth
1998	 Dr N Edwards		 Adelaide
1999	 Dr V Pellegrino		 Melbourne

2000	 Dr I Seppelt	 Canberra
2001	 Dr R Fregley		 Waikato
2001	 Dr B Mullan (special)	 Sydney
2002	 Dr D Collins		 Perth
2003	 Dr N Blackwell		 Cairns
2004	 Dr V Campbell		 Adelaide
2005	 Dr P John Victor	  Adelaide
2006	 Dr M Zib		 NSW
2007	 Dr A Nichol		 VIC
2008	 Dr B Tang		 NSW
2009	 Dr M Brain		 TAS
2010	 Dr R Fischer		 SA
2011	 Dr J Raj			 SA
2012	 Dr S Kelly		 SA
2013	 Dr Y Abdelhamid	 SA
2014	 Dr M Plummer		 SA
2015	 Dr P Kar			 SA
2016	 Dr T Beckingham	 SA
2017 Dr N Glassford		 SA

1975-77		 M Spence 		 NZ

1977-79		 GM Clarke WA

1979-80	 RC Wright 		 NSW

1980-81		 RC Wright 		 NSW

1981-82		 RV Trubuhovich  NZ

1982-84	 LIG Worthley 		 SA

1984-86	 M Fisher 		 NSW

1986-88	 J Cade 			 VIC

1988-89	 TE Oh			  WA

1989-91		 JA Judson		 NZ

1991-93 PL Blyth NSW

1993-95	 GA Skowronski		 SA

1995-96 DV Tuxen VIC

1996-98	 GJ Dobb WA

1998-00	 A Bell TAS

2000-02	 A McLean NSW

2002-03	 J Santamaria VIC

2003-05	 D Fraenkel QLD

2005-07	 I Jenkins WA

2007-09	 P Hicks   NZ

2009-11		 M O’Leary NSW

2011- 13		 M White SA

2013-15		 A Turner TAS

2015-17 M Ziegenfuss QLD
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ANZICS AWARDS

David McWilliam 

Valerie M Muir

John Myburgh

Ramesh Nagappan 

John O’Donovan 

Paul O Older

John H Overton 

W Geoff Parkin 

Garry D Phillips

Brad Power 

Ray Raper

George Skowronski 

Matthew Spence 

Thomas A Torda  

Ron V Trubuhovich  

David Tuxen  

Lindsay I Worthley 

Robert Wright  

Malcolm Wright 

Jack Havill  

Helen Opdam  

John Santamaria 

Cameron Barrett 

Anthony Bell

Rinaldo Bellomo 

Jack F Cade 

Bernard G Clarke 

Geoffrey M Clarke 

Nick J Coroneos 

Geoff J Dobb 

George Downward 

Graeme Duke 

Simon Finfer 

Malcolm Fisher 

William R Fuller 

John E Gilligan 

Gordon A Harrison 

Graeme Hart 

Robert Herkes 

Peter Hicks

Ken Hillman 

Mike Hunter 

James Judson 

Richard Lee 

Jeff Lipman 

Michael G Loughhead 

Perth		 2002	      Malcolm Fisher	 NSW

Cairns		 2003	    Lindsay Worthley	 SA

Melbourne 2004	      Jack Cade		  VIC

Adelaide	 2005	      Bob Wright		  NSW

Hobart		 2006	      Stephen Streat	 NZ

Rotorua		 2007	      Geoffrey Parkin	 VIC

Sydney		 2008	      Frank Shann		  IC

Perth		 2009	      David Tuxen		  VIC

Melbourne 2010	    Anthony Bell		 TAS

Brisbane	 2011	      Brad Power		 WA

Adelaide	 2012	    Neil Matthews	 SA

Hobart		 2013	    Felicity Hawker	 VIC

Melbourne 2014	      Simon Finfer		 NSW

Auckland 2015	    George Skowronski	 NSW

Perth      2016        Geoff Dobb       WA

Gold Coast	 2017      John Santamaria VIC

ANZICS HONOUR ROLL

RAMESH NAGAPPAN EDUCATION AWARD

Melbourne     2014	 Gerard Fennessy       VIC

Auckland      2015   Cameron Knott	        VIC

Perth              2016   Adam Deane             VIC

Gold Coast     2017    Chris Nickson            VIC

ANNUAL SCIENTIFIC MEETING ORATION

In 2002, the ANZICS Board agreed to award an ‘Oration Medal’. The Oration 
is presented on the final day of the Annual Scientific Meeting. Previous presenters 
include the following medical specialists. 
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



 









 
 
 
  
 
 
   

 









     


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 





 
    


                  






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



 






              


  






 
 



 
 




 
 





  
  
  



 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 








 
 
 



 
 
 



  
  
 


 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 

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



 







   
   

   
   
   
  
  
    
   
   
  
   
  
   
  

  
  
  
 

The Society is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a company limited by guarantee. Every member  
of the Society undertakes to contribute to the property of the Society in the event of the same being wound up while  
he/she is a member, or within one year he/she ceases to be a member, for payment of the debts and liabilities of the  
Society (contracted before he/she ceases to be a member) and of the charges and expenses of winding up and for  
the adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves, such amount as may be required, not  
exceeding $20. The liability of members at balance sheet date was limited to $18,260 (2017: $17,720) being 913
(2017: 886) members with a liability limited to $20 each.

Auditor’s independence declaration
The lead auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2018 has been receive and can be found on 
page 33 and forms part of the director’s report.

This Directors’ Report is signed in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors.



 

 
 

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





 













 



 







































Australian and New Zealand Intensive Care Society

ABN 81057 619 986

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
UNDER SUBDIVISION 60-C SECTION 60-40 OF

AUSTRALIAN CHARITIES AND NOT-FOR-PROFIT COMMISSION ACT 2012
TO THE DIRECTORS OF AUSTRALIAN AND NEW ZEALAND INTENSIVE CARE SOCIETY

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation







 













 



 






































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



 





  
   
   

     
    

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

     




    
    

    























Australian and New Zealand Intensive Care Society

ABN 81057 619 986

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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



 





   
   


     
     
     
     


     
     
    
     
     


     
     
     


     
     
     

     



     
     
     














Australian and New Zealand Intensive Care Society

ABN 81057 619 986

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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



 





   
   


     
     
     
     
     


     
     
     
     
     
     
     

     

     
     
























Australian and New Zealand Intensive Care Society

ABN 81057 619 986

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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



 





  
  
   
    

      

      
       
      

      
       
      

































Australian and New Zealand Intensive Care Society

ABN 81057 619 986

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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





 

       
               






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
   



 

Australian and New Zealand Intensive Care Society

ABN 81057 619 986

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018



ANZICS   ANNUAL REPORT    2018  39

ANZICS    ANNUAL REPORT    2018

Australian and New Zealand Intensive Care Society

ABN 81057 619 986

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018







 




                   



                  




 
 


 

  


 




                 
              









  

 
 


         




 
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





 







 




  
                  


                  

                




                 
                 



     
               


 



   
        
    



 





 
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





 





            
               






                 




 
      






                     
          



                 




              
               




      
                






 
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





 




                 
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  




                
 


     
                 
 
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





 













              



             
             






                 

                



     
                


                
               


               





                  



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





 




 
 
 
 
 


      

              


                 










                 


        


   


 


 



       


                 

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





 

   
   


     
     
     
     
     
     

     
     
     
     
     

     
     
     
     

     




     
     
     

     


     
     
     
     


     
     
     


     


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





 

   
   


     
     
     


     

     
     
     
     


     
     
     

     

 












  
   
   

      
       
       
      
      


      
       
       
      
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





 


   
   

     
     
     

     
     
     

     


  
   
   

      
      
      
      


      
      
      
      

   
   

     
     
     
     
     
     
     

       


     
     
     
     
     
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





 


   
   


     
     
     


     



          
    

     
                  


    


   


   
   

     

     
     
    
     


 
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





 

   
   

        

     

     
     
     
     
     
     

     
     
     
     

     








                 



               
               
               

   
   

     
     
     
     
 

Australian and New Zealand Intensive Care Society

ABN 81057 619 986

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018



ANZICS   ANNUAL REPORT    2018  50

ANZICS    ANNUAL REPORT    2018







 





      


     
     

         
         
         
        



        
        
 






     
     



     
     
     

     
     
     





                







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





 




   
   





     
     
     
     






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



 




 












   








 
 
 
 





Australian and New Zealand Intensive Care Society

ABN 81057 619 986

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 34 - 51, are in accordance with the Australia Charities and
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

































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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO MEMBERS OF THE

AUSTRALIAN AND NEW ZEALAND INTENSIVE CARE SOCIETY

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial report of Australian and New Zealand Intensive Care Society, which comprises the 
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration. 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Australian and New Zealand Intensive Care Society has 
been prepared in accordance with Div 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, 
including: 

I. giving a true and fair view of the registered entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2018 and of its financial
performance for the year then ended; and 

II. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Div 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits
Commission Regulation 2013.

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditorôs Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our 
report. We are independent of the registered entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report 
The directors of the registered entity are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and 
fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits
Commission Act 2012 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the registered entity’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the registered entity or to cease operations, or have no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation 
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

















 

                
                


 



 


 
 

       
               
                


       
              




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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
4.45pm Friday 13th October 2017 

Arena 1B, Gold Coast Convention & Exhibition Centre, Gold Coast, Queensland 

DRAFT MINUTES 

1. WELCOME, PRESENT & APOLOGIES President 

Present 
Dr Marc Ziegenfuss 
(President) 
Dr Stephen Warrillow 
(Vice President) 
Dr Anthony Holley 
(Hon Treasurer) 
A/Prof Adam Deane 
(Hon Secretary) 
Dr Michael Ashbolt 
Dr Jonathan Barrett 
Dr Ben Barry 
Dr Neeraj Bhadange 
Dr Nikki Blackwell 
Dr Jonathan Buckmaster 
Dr Jeremy Cohen 
Dr David Cook 
Dr David Cooper 
Dr David Crosbie 
A/Prof Adam Deane 
Dr Naomi Diel 
Dr Graeme Duke 
Dr Katrina Ellem 
Dr Craig French 
Dr Elizabeth Fugaccia 
Dr David Gattas 

Dr Ben Gelbart 
Dr Rajeev Hegde 
Dr Robert Henning 
Dr Gill Hood 
Dr Ian Jenkins 
Dr Amod Karnik 
Dr Myrene Kilminster  
Dr Cameron Knott 
Dr David Ku 
A/Prof Christopher MacIsaac 
Dr Steven McGloughlin 
Dr Tony Mullens 
Dr Mark Nicholls 
A/Prof David Pilcher 
Dr Sam Radford 
Dr Mahesh Ramanan 
Dr Raymond Raper 
Dr David Rigg 
Dr John Santamaria 
Dr Siva Senthuran 
Dr Geoff Shaw 
A/Prof George Skowronski 
Dr Ruwan Suwandarathne 
Dr Richard Totaro 
Dr Shane Townsend 

Dr David Tuxen  
A/Prof Andrew Udy 
Dr Bradley Wibrow 
Dr Sarah Yong 

Apologies 
Dr Jonathan Casement 
Prof Geoff Cutfield 
Prof John Myburgh 
Hon Dr Brian Pezzutti 
Dr Ian Seppelt 
Dr Wade Stedman 
Dr Ron Trubuhovich 

In Attendance  
Brent Kingston (Minutes) 
Gian Sberna 
(ANZICS General Manager) 

MZ welcomed all to the meeting and noted the apologies received for the AGM. 

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING President 
Marc Ziegenfuss (MZ) proposed the minutes of the previous AGM, held Friday 21st October 2016 be 
accepted as a true and accurate record of the meeting.  

Motion: The minutes are accepted as a true and accurate record of the meeting. 
Proposed: Marc Ziegenfuss 
Seconded: David Pilcher 

Motion Carried 
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Proposed: Marc Ziegenfuss
Seconded: David Pilcher

Motion Carried
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3. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
MZ updated on the past 12 months as ANZICS President. 

It was announced that the Women in Intensive Network (WIN) are new a subcommittee of ANZICS, advising 
of the need for change and facilitation of gender equity.  MZ highlighted that there is not only a need to 
address this at a representational level, but also at a foundational level. 

The networking component of conferences should not be underrated, advising that the ability to engage 
and share experiences can be invaluable. 
 
It was highlighted that ANZICS has lost its way in terms of the current ASM demographic and engaging the 
newer workforce and millennials. MZ advised that there is a realisation from within the Society to 
succession plan for the future, particularly in the specialised areas such as CORE, CTG etc. The addition of 
Trainee’s to each of these Committees enables corporate knowledge and stability into the future. 
 
It was noted that ANZICS does not self-promote the activities of the Society and its Committees, particularly 
those efforts that are completed behind the scenes. The best advocates of the Society are those that are 
actively involved from within and it isn’t until the what does ANZICS do question is raised do people 
understand. 
 
MZ advised that the recent Expressions of Interest for workforce and wellbeing are currently still open. The 
aims of this group is to create a position statement on how to protect our craft group. MZ advised of the 
need to strengthen the collaboration with the nursing contingent and to further enhance the presence of 
ANZICS in the ICU community.  
 
MZ thanked the group for the opportunity of fulfilling the ANZICS Presidency, the fellow Board Members 
that have served along with Gian Sberna and the Central Team at ANZICS House. 

4. TREASURER’S REPORT 
AH presented the Treasurer’s Report to the ANZICS Membership. 

The profit margin for 2016/2017 was significantly less, this was due to the decrease in income received 
from grants. Expenses were refined during the year, resulting in a positive surplus. 

The total comprehensive income for the year reflects a figure of $862,000, compared to $380,000 in 2016. 
This large increase is solely attributed to the mandatory revaluation of ANZICS House. 
 
The main points of revenue for the Society were: 

- CORE Funding
- Conferences
- Membership Subscriptions

Current total assets of the Society are $5.2 million, with the liabilities $855,000, mainly due to monies 
outstanding, along with long service leave and staff salaries etc.  

The forthcoming financial year forecasts a breakeven result, with potential for this to increase following the 
result of the 2017 ASM.  

Connecting the 
Intensive Care Community

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
4.45pm Friday 13th October 2017

Arena 1B, Gold Coast Convention & Exhibition Centre, Gold Coast, Queensland

DRAFT MINUTES

1. WELCOME, PRESENT & APOLOGIES President

Present
Dr Marc Ziegenfuss
(President)
Dr Stephen Warrillow
(Vice President)
Dr Anthony Holley
(Hon Treasurer)
A/Prof Adam Deane
(Hon Secretary)
Dr Michael Ashbolt
Dr Jonathan Barrett
Dr Ben Barry
Dr Neeraj Bhadange
Dr Nikki Blackwell
Dr Jonathan Buckmaster
Dr Jeremy Cohen
Dr David Cook
Dr David Cooper
Dr David Crosbie
A/Prof Adam Deane
Dr Naomi Diel
Dr Graeme Duke
Dr Katrina Ellem
Dr Craig French
Dr Elizabeth Fugaccia
Dr David Gattas

Dr Ben Gelbart
Dr Rajeev Hegde
Dr Robert Henning
Dr Gill Hood
Dr Ian Jenkins
Dr Amod Karnik
Dr Myrene Kilminster
Dr Cameron Knott
Dr David Ku
A/Prof Christopher MacIsaac
Dr Steven McGloughlin
Dr Tony Mullens
Dr Mark Nicholls
A/Prof David Pilcher
Dr Sam Radford
Dr Mahesh Ramanan
Dr Raymond Raper
Dr David Rigg
Dr John Santamaria
Dr Siva Senthuran
Dr Geoff Shaw
A/Prof George Skowronski
Dr Ruwan Suwandarathne
Dr Richard Totaro
Dr Shane Townsend

Dr David Tuxen
A/Prof Andrew Udy
Dr Bradley Wibrow
Dr Sarah Yong

Apologies
Dr Jonathan Casement
Prof Geoff Cutfield
Prof John Myburgh
Hon Dr Brian Pezzutti
Dr Ian Seppelt
Dr Wade Stedman
Dr Ron Trubuhovich

In Attendance
Brent Kingston (Minutes)
Gian Sberna
(ANZICS General Manager)

MZ welcomed all to the meeting and noted the apologies received for the AGM.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING President
Marc Ziegenfuss (MZ) proposed the minutes of the previous AGM, held Friday 21st October 2016 be
accepted as a true and accurate record of the meeting. 

Motion: The minutes are accepted as a true and accurate record of the meeting.
Proposed: Marc Ziegenfuss
Seconded: David Pilcher

Motion Carried



ANZICS   ANNUAL REPORT    2018  57

ANZICS    ANNUAL REPORT    2018

            Connecting the 
Intensive Care Community 

Motion: The 2016/17 Financial Report was accepted as a true and accurate record by the ANZICS 
Membership. 
Proposed: Anthony Holley 
Seconded: Marc Ziegenfuss 
 
5. ELECTION OF OFFICE BEARERS 
MZ updated on the nominations received for the ANZICS Office-bearer positions, advising that the following 
positions received interest as follows: 
 
President: Stephen Warrillow 
Honorary Treasurer: Anthony Holley  
Honorary Secretary: David Ku  
 
MZ called for the membership to ratify the ANZICS Office-Bearer positions. 
 
Motion: The nomination received for ANZICS President from Stephen Warrillow be accepted and ratified 
by the ANZICS Membership.  
Proposed: Marc Ziegenfuss 
Seconded: Rajeev Hegde 
 
Unanimous vote in support of the ratification. 
 
Motion: Anthony Holley’s nomination for ANZICS Honorary Treasurer be accepted and ratified by the 
ANZICS Membership. 
Proposed: Marc Ziegenfuss 
Seconded: Rajeev Hegde 

 Unanimous vote in support of the ratification. 

Motion: David Ku’s nomination for the role of Honorary Secretary be accepted and ratified by the ANZICS 
Membership. 
Proposed: Marc Ziegenfuss 
Seconded: Rajeev Hegde 
 
Unanimous vote in support of the ratification. 
 
6. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE PROPOSAL TO THE MEMBERSHIP
MZ advised the Executive and the Board have been deliberating the sale of ANZICS House for a number of
years. This recently received the full support of the ANZICS Board and to source an alternative location or to
potentially co-locate with CICM.

GS presented information on impending concerns with regards to the sale of ANZICS House providing the 
Society with an ideal time to capitalise on value of the property. The current facility is approximately 45 
years old and is beginning to require more significant works. The concrete on the building façade is 
beginning to require maintenance with an increasing need to replace areas on the upper floors. The 
buildings air-conditioning system is nearing a full replacement, initial quotes have come in at approximately 
$120,000.  
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Directly opposite the property a large-scale redevelopment has been approved, this will see two, ten storey 
student apartment buildings constructed. This will see restricted access to the laneway where the office is 
located, affecting logistics of entering and exiting. Due to the plan including the demolition of the current 
property and the creation of underground foundations, this is likely to increase the cracks appearing on 
structure of ANZICS House. ANZICS House presently has fantastic views across to the CBD located 400m 
away, however, the planned works will erase these and tower six storeys above the building. Opinions 
received from Real Estate Agents have advised of the risk of devaluation. 
 
The Melbourne Metro Tunnel will also affect Carlton as a suburb due to road restrictions caused by 
tunnelling. Recent council work has seen the laneway temporarily closed off, along with frequent 
obstructions from garbage trucks and Peugeot Service Centre trucks. It was noted that this could be a risk 
to those working at Ievers Terrace due to the inability to evacuate during an emergency. Following multiple 
valuations, it has been advised that ANZICS House is currently valued at $4 million. 
 
GS advised that from a membership perspective, these funds could be added to the investment portfolio or 
to look to purchase property in future.  
 
George Skowronski queried what the potential next property may look like/ cost. GS advised that this 
process had not yet begun, advising that this would need to be completed in consultation with the ANZICS 
Board. The inner-city fringe is still the preferred location for ANZICS, however, renting a property may be 
the best way forward with the interest off the potential building funds in the managed portfolio covering 
this expense. 
 
Stephen Warrillow also advised that the ability to maintain the asset and lease to another businesses was 
explored, although upon evaluation wasn’t a preferred option. 
 
It was advised that no formal discussions had begun with CICM regarding a potential relocation. 
 
Motion: The ANZICS Board and Executive proposed the progression of the sale of ANZICS House and the 
pursuit of a new office location for ANZICS House.  
Proposed: Mark Nicholls  
Seconded: Anthony Holley 
 
The Membership voted in support of this decision. 
 
7. MEMBERSHIP REPORT
AD presented the Membership Report. 
 
A large amount of work had been completed in removing members outstanding for multiple financial years 
from the database. There are currently 736 ANZICS Members. Full members currently reflect 481, this 
particular category has shown little growth, however there has been an increase across nursing and allied 
health categories.  

A strategic planning day is currently being organised, it was advised that a survey for member feedback 
would be a valuable tool to assist with this.  

David Tuxen questioned what percentage of practicing Intensivists and Trainees ANZICS currently captures. 
AD advised that the total number was approximately 45-50%, although it is difficult to confirm the exact 
number due to the requirement of CICM data to compare. Due to privacy issues with third party 
organisations, this is highly unlikely.  
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MZ thanked AD for his term as Honorary Secretary.  

8. PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE
8.1 Practice and Economics Committee 

MN highlighted the recent involvement in the MBS Review Taskforce, with intensive care the second 
specialty involved. The report was recently released for public consultation. The Committee were 
supportive of all of the recommendations. It is encouraged that the membership review and direct any 
comments back to Canberra. The daily management fees 13870 and 13873 remain unchanged, the invasive 
pressure monitoring 13876 is also unchanged. There has been a removal of differential fees for balloon 
pumps to leave only the fixed fee 13848. In terms of prescriptors, some people have been using ultrasound 
that have been jointly used with the Radiologists that will no longer possible with access only to the 13815 
and the 13842. 
 
It is hopeful that there will be traction on a new MBS Item for discussion documentation on the roles of 
care by an Intensive Care Specialist. For example; if time is spent speaking with patients and their families, 
this should be documented within the notes – there will be a reasonable fee associated. The fee won’t be 
passed onto the patient, it will go to the intensive care unit. This will move forward with an MSAC item. 
 
MN noted that Medibank Private had approached the Society, advising that in the small print there was a 
note that the Intensive Care Doctor needed to document in the notes in some way that they had seen the 
patient. After Medibank review of 126 submissions of a selected hospital, it was found that in 32 of these, 
at least one day had no evidence of intensive care involvement. MN highlighted that in hospital one, there 
were 478 admissions, with 44 occurrences of no intensive care involvement. 
 
Comment was made by Medibank that they may seek to retrospectively request money back for these. MN 
advised that correspondence would be sent out to ensure that from a set date, the Intensivist’s name is 
included in the notes in some way. 
 
8.2 ANZICS Centre for Outcome and Resource Evaluation 
David Pilcher presented the ANZICS CORE Report on behalf of Peter Hicks. 
 
DP provided updates on COMET, advising that the Data Collection Tool would be replacing AORTIC. The 
program has been built in a way that it allows user platform expansion to increase the reporting functions 
to ensure that there is capability to add additional data information in the future. There are currently 44 
sites submitting to COMET, with the remainder to be transitioned in the coming year. 
 
Updates were provided on the Datathon held in March, DP highlighted the large amount of work 
contributed by Cameron Knott, Sarah Yong and Sue Huckson and her team. Over 150 clinicians attended 
the event, producing a considerable amount of research from the event. There are 10 of these abstracts 
being presented at the 2017 ASM in varying forms. 

There have been 17 publications from the Adult and Paediatric Registries over the last 12 months. 

DP advised of the decision to step down as Chair of CORE following 8 years in the position. Peter Hicks has 
since taken over as Chair, with DP remaining in the form of APD Chair, Johnny Millar as ANZPICR Chair and 
Ed Litton as CCR Chair. A Deputy/Associate Lead is also intended for the APD to assist with the expanding 
activities and to ensure succession plans are in place. 
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Apologies
Dr Jonathan Casement
Prof Geoff Cutfield
Prof John Myburgh
Hon Dr Brian Pezzutti
Dr Ian Seppelt
Dr Wade Stedman
Dr Ron Trubuhovich

In Attendance
Brent Kingston (Minutes)
Gian Sberna
(ANZICS General Manager)

MZ welcomed all to the meeting and noted the apologies received for the AGM.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING President
Marc Ziegenfuss (MZ) proposed the minutes of the previous AGM, held Friday 21st October 2016 be
accepted as a true and accurate record of the meeting. 

Motion: The minutes are accepted as a true and accurate record of the meeting.
Proposed: Marc Ziegenfuss
Seconded: David Pilcher

Motion Carried
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8.3 ANZICS Clinical Trials Group 
Craig French presented the CTG Update. 

Highlight was made to the formation of the CTG Committee nearly 25 years ago and the success achieved 
within this timeframe.  
 
Over this time, there are now 12 publications across multiple high profile medical journals, $100 million 
awarded in grant funding and international collaborations with 4 continents with the exception of Africa. 
The changes within the research sector were noted, with the Medical Research Future Fund to likely 
become the way CTG research is funded in the future. Associated with this is the rise of other Clinical Trials 
Groups outside of the intensive care space, that will be competing from the same pool of funding. 
 
CTG have noted the importance to continually review the structure and the way that the committee 
operates.  
 
8.4 Safety & Quality Committee 
Taken as read from the Annual Report. 
 
8.5 Education Committee  
Taken as read from the Annual Report 
 
8.6 Death and Organ Donation Committee 
Ben Gelbart presented the DODC Report on behalf of Bill Silvester. 
 
The major output for the Committee has been the update to the 2013 Death and Organ Donation 
Statement. Work on the statement began in April with a number of face-to-face meetings and 
teleconferences. Over the next few months, further meetings are planned to finalise the document. 

A tripartite Memorandum of Understanding with CICM and OTA was formed to develop Family Donation 
Conversation element of Organ Donation. 

9. OTHER BUSINESS 
No further business discussed. 

10. FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
43rd ANZICS/ACCCN Intensive Care Annual Scientific Meeting (ASM) Adelaide Convention and Exhibition 
Centre, Adelaide, South Australia 11th – 13th October 2018 
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4.45pm Friday 13th October 2017

Arena 1B, Gold Coast Convention & Exhibition Centre, Gold Coast, Queensland

DRAFT MINUTES

1. WELCOME, PRESENT & APOLOGIES President

Present
Dr Marc Ziegenfuss
(President)
Dr Stephen Warrillow
(Vice President)
Dr Anthony Holley
(Hon Treasurer)
A/Prof Adam Deane
(Hon Secretary)
Dr Michael Ashbolt
Dr Jonathan Barrett
Dr Ben Barry
Dr Neeraj Bhadange
Dr Nikki Blackwell
Dr Jonathan Buckmaster
Dr Jeremy Cohen
Dr David Cook
Dr David Cooper
Dr David Crosbie
A/Prof Adam Deane
Dr Naomi Diel
Dr Graeme Duke
Dr Katrina Ellem
Dr Craig French
Dr Elizabeth Fugaccia
Dr David Gattas

Dr Ben Gelbart
Dr Rajeev Hegde
Dr Robert Henning
Dr Gill Hood
Dr Ian Jenkins
Dr Amod Karnik
Dr Myrene Kilminster
Dr Cameron Knott
Dr David Ku
A/Prof Christopher MacIsaac
Dr Steven McGloughlin
Dr Tony Mullens
Dr Mark Nicholls
A/Prof David Pilcher
Dr Sam Radford
Dr Mahesh Ramanan
Dr Raymond Raper
Dr David Rigg
Dr John Santamaria
Dr Siva Senthuran
Dr Geoff Shaw
A/Prof George Skowronski
Dr Ruwan Suwandarathne
Dr Richard Totaro
Dr Shane Townsend

Dr David Tuxen
A/Prof Andrew Udy
Dr Bradley Wibrow
Dr Sarah Yong

Apologies
Dr Jonathan Casement
Prof Geoff Cutfield
Prof John Myburgh
Hon Dr Brian Pezzutti
Dr Ian Seppelt
Dr Wade Stedman
Dr Ron Trubuhovich

In Attendance
Brent Kingston (Minutes)
Gian Sberna
(ANZICS General Manager)

MZ welcomed all to the meeting and noted the apologies received for the AGM.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING President
Marc Ziegenfuss (MZ) proposed the minutes of the previous AGM, held Friday 21st October 2016 be
accepted as a true and accurate record of the meeting. 

Motion: The minutes are accepted as a true and accurate record of the meeting.
Proposed: Marc Ziegenfuss
Seconded: David Pilcher
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